
 
 

PLEASE NOTE: It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at the 
above meetings to gather information.  No action will be taken by any governmental body other than that specifically noticed.  Also, upon reasonable notice, efforts 
will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information or to request such services 
contact the clerk’s office at the above. 

Town Clerk’s Office | Town of Brookfield 
645 N. Janacek Road | Brookfield, WI 53045 
Phone: (262)796-3788 | Fax: (262)796-0339 

 
MEETING NOTICE 

TOWN BOARD 
TOWN OF BROOKFIELD, WISCONSIN 

The Town Board of the Town of Brookfield will hold its regular semi-monthly meeting of Utility District No. 1, 
Sanitary District No. 4 and General Town Business on Tuesday, September 20, 2022 at 7:00pm in the Erich 
Gnant meeting room of the Town of Brookfield Municipal Building, located at 645 North Janacek Road, 
Brookfield, Wisconsin. 

 
AGENDA: 

 
1) Call to Order. 

2) Meeting Notices. 

3) Approval of Agenda. 

4) Approval of Minutes. 

5) Citizen comments: Three-minute limit. 

6) Old Business:   

a. Discussion and possible action regarding Wray Park improvements  

(This item was tabled on 8/16/22)  

7) New Business: 

a. Discussion and possible action regarding the 2023 Budget  

b. Discussion and possible action regarding the PFAS Cost Recovery Program  

c. Discussion and possible approval of an application for a Temporary Class “B” Beer License 

to the Greater Brookfield Chamber of Commerce for a Brooktoberfest event to be held on 

October 1, 2022 at Stefans Soccer, 620 Elizabeth Ct., Brookfield, WI. 53045 

8) Department, Boards, Committee/Commission Reports/Recommendations:  

a. Plan Commission  

i. Recommendation to approve the plan of operation for 20825 Swenson Dr., Suite 

150 to allow an indoor small engine testing facility located within an office building  

9) Approval of Vouchers and Checks. 

10) Communications and Announcements. 

11) Adjournment. 

 

 

Posted this 16th day of September, 2022  
   

Georgia Balcerowski  

Interim Town Clerk 



TOWN OF BROOKFIELD 
TOWN BOARD MINUTES 

September 6, 2022 
 

A joint meeting of the Town Board was held on Tuesday, September 6, 2022 in the Erich Gnant Room of 
the Town Hall, 645 N Janacek Road, Brookfield, WI. 

   
    

1) CALL TO ORDER 
The Town Board meeting was called to order by Chairman Henderson at 7:00PM with the following 
people present: Town Chairman Keith Henderson; Supervisors Steve Kohlmann, Ryan Stanelle, Michael 
Schmitt, and John Schatzman; Town Administrator Tom Hagie; Town Attorney Michael Van Kleunen; and 
Interim Town Clerk Georgia Balcerowski.  
 

2) MEETING NOTICES 
Clerk Balcerowski confirmed that the meeting agenda was noticed as required by law.  
 

3) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Motion by Supervisor Schatzman to approve the agenda. Seconded by Supervisor Stanelle.  
Motion Passed Unanimously 

 
4) APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Motion by Supervisor Stanelle to approve the August 16, 2022 Town Board meeting minutes with the 
revisions as presented. Seconded by Supervisor Kohlmann.  
Motion Passed Unanimously  
 
Motion by Supervisor Stanelle to approve the August 18, 2022 Special Town Board meeting minutes with 
the revisions as presented. Seconded by Supervisor Schmitt.  
Motion Passed Unanimously  

 
5) CITIZEN COMMENTS  

None. 
 
6) OLD BUSINESS 

None.  
 

7) NEW BUSINESS 
a) DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING AN APPLICATION FOR CLASS “B” (BEER) 

LICENSE: BEYOND THE BOARD LLC., D/B/A BEYOND THE BOARD, LOCATED AT 17800 W. 
BLUEMOUND RD., BROOKFIELD, WI. 53045 AGENT: ALEXANDER SHARP, 1612 VIRGINIA ST., 
RACINE, WI. 53405 
Motion by Supervisor Kohlmann to approve the license as presented. Seconded by Supervisor 
Schmitt.  
Motion Passed Unanimously 

b) DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING AN APPLICATION FOR CLASS “B” (BEER) AND 
CLASS “C” (WINE) LICENSE: JTE CHICKEN BROOKFIELD, LLC., D/B/A HERE CHICKY CHICKY, 
LOCATED AT 20340 W. LORD ST., BROOKFIELD, WI. 53045, AGENT: KORI KONOPKA, 4148 
NEWHALL RD., SHOREWOOD., WI. 53211 
Motion by Supervisor Stanelle to approve the license as presented but contingent on the 
owner/agent providing a plan of operation to the Town Clerk’s Office. Seconded by Supervisor 
Schmitt.  
Motion Passed Unanimously 

c) DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING UPDATES TO THE TOWN’S WARNING SYSTEM. 



 

Page 2, Town of Brookfield, Town Board, August 16, 2022 
 

Motion by Supervisor Schmitt to approve the purchase for replacement in the amount of 
$21,578.00. Seconded by Supervisor Kohlmann. 
Motion Passed Unanimously 

d) DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING PURCHASE APPROVAL FOR NEOLOGY THREE 
CAMERA MOBILE ALPR SYSTEM WITH FUNDING THROUGH THE DOA LE GRANT 
Motion to approve the purchase as outlined by the Police Chief by Supervisor Kohlmann. 
Seconded by Supervisor Schmitt.  
Motion Passed Unanimously 

e) DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF JOHN MAROSE TO THE 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS WITH TERM EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY AND ENDING IN 2025. 
Motion by Supervisor Kohlmann to approve the appointment as presented. Seconded by 
Supervisor Schmitt.  
Motion Passed Unanimously 

f) DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE A FEE SCHEDULE AMENDMENT FOR THE SIGN 
PERMIT FEE AS PRESENTED.  
Motion by Supervisor Stanelle to approve the amendment of the Fee Schedule for the Sign 
Permit Fee to the cost of $75.00. Seconded by Supervisor Schmitt.  
Motion Passed Unanimously.  

 

8) Department, Boards, Committee/Commission Reports/Recommendations: 
a. Plan Commission 

i. RECOMMENDATION TO SCHEDULE A PUBLIC HEARING FOR A ZONING CODE TEXT 

AMENDMENT TO SECTION 17.02(14)(G)1 RELATED TO ACCESSORY STRUCTURES ON 

SEPTEMBER 27, 2022 

Motion by Supervisor Stanelle to set the public hearing date for September 27, 2022. 

Seconded by Supervisor Kohlmann.  

Motion Passed Unanimously  

ii. RECOMMENDATION TO SCHEDULE A PUBLIC HEARING FOR A ZONING CODE TEXT 
AMENDMENT TO SECTION 17.02(14)G)1 RELATED TO ACCESSORY STRUCTURES ON 
SEPTEMBER 27,2022 
Motion by Supervisor Stanelle to set the public hearing date for September 27, 
2022. Seconded by Supervisor Schatzman.  
Motion Passed Unanimously 

 
9) APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS AND CHECKS 

Motion by Supervisor Schatzmann to approve the vouchers and checks as presented in the amount of 
$210,181.24. Seconded by Supervisor Stanelle.  
Motion Passed Unanimously.  

 
10) COMMUNICATIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

None. 
 

11) ADJOURN 
With no further business, motion by Supervisor Schmitt to adjourn at 8:14PM. Seconded by Supervisor 
Kohlmann.  
Motion Passed Unanimously.   

 
 



 

Page 3, Town of Brookfield, Town Board, August 16, 2022 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
Georgia Balcerowski  
Interim Town Clerk 



  



 















































Contact Us For a Free Claims AnalysisNAPOLILAW.COM

Leading the Fight
Against Environmental
Contamination



360 LEXINGTON AVENUE, 11TH FLOOR, NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10017 NAPOLILAW.COM

    Perfluorobutyric acid (PFBA)
    Perfluorohexonoic acid (PFHxA)
 Perfluoroheptanoic acid (PFHpA)
 Perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA)
 Perfluorononanoic acid (PFNA)
 Perfluorodecanoic acid (PFDeA)
  Perfluoroundecanoic acid (PFUA)
 Perfluorobutane sulfonic acid (PFBuS)
 Perfluorohexane sulfonic acid (PFBxS)
 Perfluorooctane sulfonic acid (PFOS)
 Perfluorododecanoic acid (PFDoA)
 Perfluorooctane sulfonamide (PFOSA)

PFAS include but are not limited to:

PFOA and PFOS can cause
“reproductive and developmental, liver
and kidney, and immunological effects
in laboratory animals... Both chemicals
have caused tumors in animal studies.”

Studies have Shown

In fact, boiling contaminated water only further
concentrates the chemical.

! This chemical cannot
be boiled out of the water.

 Landfills
 Firefighting Facilities
 Airports
 Bio Solid Disposal on Land
 Manufacturer

Potential Contamination Sources

Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS) are a 
group of man-made chemicals that are known as 
“Forever Chemicals” due to their persistence and 
stability in the environment. The most common 
chemicals in this group include Perfluorooctanoic 
acid (PFOA) and Perfluorooctane sulfonic acid (PFOS). 

What are PFAS?

According to a May 2018 Environmental
Working Group (EWG) Report.

More than 1500 drinking water
systems across the U.S. may be
contaminated with PFOA and PFOS.

PFAS OVERVIEW



NAPOLILAW.COM

AFFF Products are used during fire protection,
training and response activities. Due to these 
activities, AFFF was released into surrounding
air, soil and groundwater. This caused PFAS
exposure and contamination of base water supplies. 

Speak with our Veterans Advocacy Group

MILITARY PERSONNEL HEALTH ALERT

David Q. Andrews, Olga V. Naidenko, Population-Wide Exposure to 

Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances from Drinking Water in the 

United States, Environmental Science & Technology Letters 2020 7 (12), 

931-936, DOI: 10.1021/acs.estlett.0c00713, 

https://doi.org/10.1021/acs.estlett.0c00713

Studies estimate 18–80 million people in the U.S. 
receive tap water containing at least 10 ng/L of PFOA 
and PFOS, and more than 200 million people receive 
water with concentrations of at least 1 ng/L.

How much PFAS have you been exposed to?

Production or importation of
PFOS-based firefighting foams has
already been banned in the US,
Canada, the EU, Australia, and Japan.

Banned Chemicals

   Firefighting Foams
   Firefighter turnout gear
   Treated clothing that is stain resistant or 
  waterproof
   Fast food or packaged food containers, such
  as french fry boxes, pizza boxes, hamburger 
    wrappers, and microwave popcorn bags
   Makeup and personal care products, such as 
  dental floss, pressed powders, nail polish, and 
  shaving  cream with ingredients that have 
  ‘perfluoro’ in the name
   Floor care products
   Cleaning products

Where are PFAS found? 

People can be exposed to PFAS through food, drinking 
water, and/or biodegradation of consumer products. 
These contaminants are readily absorbed by the body 
and, once ingested, may persist in the body for long 
periods of time. 

Exposure

EPA PFAS Strategic Roadmap

“Every level of government—federal, 
Tribal, state, and local—needs to exercise 
increased and sustained leadership to 
accelerate progress to clean up PFAS 
contamination, prevent new contamination, 
and make game-changing breakthroughs in
the scientific understanding of PFAS.”the scientific understanding of PFAS.”

PFAS OVERVIEW

Contact Us For a Free Claims Analysis



  Testicular cancer        Kidney cancer
  Liver cancer           Pancreatic cancer
  Bladder cancer         Low birth weight
  Prostate cancer         Ulcerative colitis
  Serious thyroid problems    Preeclampsia



Contact Us For a Free Claims AnalysisNAPOLILAW.COM

Source: https://pfas-1.itrcweb.org/2-6-pfas-releases-to-the-environment/

More than half of sewage solids 
produced in the country are applied 
to agricultural lands as fertilizer, 
much of which contains PFAS. PFAS 
can then be taken by plants and 
eaten by animals, thereby entering 
our food sources.our food sources.

Source: https://pfas-1.itrcweb.org/2-6-pfas-releases-to-the-environment

PFAS are very stable compounds 
and, unless removed properly, can 
easily remain in soils or circulate 
through groundwater and waste 
water treatment plants for years.

Source: https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2021-09/ow-prelim-elg-plan-15_508.pdf

The EPA has also verified that PFAS are present in 

wastewater from these facilities, which then enter

surface water and POTWs. To address these issues, 

the EPA plans to revise existing guidelines and 

standards for discharges from facilities that 

manufacture and use PFAS.

Not much is known about the quantities, types, or 

specific sources of discharged PFAS, yet PFAS continue 

to be manufactured and used. Furthermore, the EPA 

has not yet identified all facilities using PFAS, 

suggesting that there are potentially many more 

facilities using PFAS than previously thought.

Although there has been a steep increase in PFAS 

research oriented towards drinking water and its 

effects on the environment, surface water and 

publicly owned treatment works (POTWs) have 

received little attention.

Studies show that Conventional 
Wastewater Treatment Plants 
(WWTPs) Do Not Effectively Remove 
Many Harmful PFAS

Unless a wastewater system is 
specifically designed to remove 
PFAS, it recirculates and distributes 
these harmful chemicals 
throughout the environment.

WASTEWATER SYSTEMS



Revised Health Advisory (June 2022)



360 LEXINGTON AVENUE, 11TH FLOOR, NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10017 NAPOLILAW.COM

In order to close the PFAS cycle, treatment
systems must be installed at both drinking
water and wastewater treatment facilities

What are water treatment options that are currently available?
   Current water and wastewater treatment options include granulated or powdered activated 
       carbon (GAC/PAC), Ion exchange resin, nanofiltration, ozone and photolysis (UV treatment). 

Once PFAS is removed from the water, how is it disposed of?
   Each state will have their own permitted method of disposal but generally, once PFAS are removed, 
        they are either sent to landfills or facilities where they are destroyed (typically via incineration). 

How can PFAS be treated if there is soil contamination?How can PFAS be treated if there is soil contamination?
   PFAS can either be removed from soil via pump and treat methods (using above methods to remove PFAS 
       such as activated carbon or ion exchange), in-situ treatment through oxidation, or excavation and disposal.
   Another method of treatment is immobilization of PFAS in the soil, where the PFAS are not actually 
      removed from the soil. It is a less expensive option that is typically achieved by injecting and/or mixing 
     activated carbon into the soil.

Is it a heavy metal?
    No, PFAS do not contain heavy metals. PFAS are synthetically-derived organic compounds containing 
     many fluorine atoms, which make them very stable and persistent in our bodies and the environment.

Will secondary systems have to test too?
   The EPA has not indicated any such requirement.

   
 

Long-term robust treatment 
& remediation costs should 
be shouldered by the 
manufacturers who caused 
this pervasive contamination.

TREATMENT & REMEDIATION 



Sam Wade
Water Consultant

Tom Jawin
Environmental Engineer

Steve Acquario
Of Counsel

Kiara Gonzalez
Associate

Marissa Font
Associate

Cristina Rodriguez
Associate

Veronica Vazquez
Associate

Coral Odiot-Rivera
Partner

Hank Naughton
Partner

Andrew W. Kroner
Partner

Paul J. Napoli
Partner

Hunter J. Shkolnik
Partner

Marie Napoli
Partner



Contact Us For a Free Claims AnalysisNAPOLILAW.COM

All AFFF contains PFAS. The only 
Class B foams that do not contain 
PFAS are specifically labeled as 
Fluorine-Free Foams (FFF, or F3). 
Many AFFF may advertise as “PFOA- 
and PFOS- free”, however they will 
contain other types of PFAS whose contain other types of PFAS whose 
safety is not guaranteed. 

Through no fault of their own, many 
airports are finding out that the prior 
use of foam has contaminated their 
property and surrounding areas, 
requiring cleanup.

Airports across the country are at risk of facing massive 

financial burdens from contaminated land and drinking 

water systems that will require remediation. A growing 

number of general aviation and Part 139 airports are 

filing lawsuits that seek damages and penalties from the 

manufacturers of firefighting foam, including The 3M Co., 

Tyco Fire Products L.P., National Foam, Inc., Buckeye Fire Tyco Fire Products L.P., National Foam, Inc., Buckeye Fire 

Protection, Chemguard, E.I. Du Pont De Nemours and 

Company and The Chemours Company.

Aqueous Film Forming Foam (AFFF) is a type of Class B 

foam that contains extremely high levels of PFAS and is 

currently the most common and widely used foam of 

this type. Although the FAA no longer legally requires 

the storage and use of AFFF at all part 139 airports, 

they have yet to approve a single non-PFAS containing 

Class B foam that could be used as a substitute. Class B foam that could be used as a substitute. 

Class B firefighting foams are 
used to extinguish fires involving 
flammable and combustible liquids, 
such as jet fuel. 

Part 139 airports are forced to 
use and store PFAS-containing 
foams on premises. 
 

AIRPORTS AND FIRE DEPARTMENTS 



NAPOLILAW.COM

Statute of Limitations in Toxic Tort Cases:
CPLR 214-f and Beyond
by Paul J. Napoli and Michelle Greene
New York Law Journal, January 2019

PFAS and Their Implications to Landfills
NYSASWM Newsletter: Talk of the Towns &
Topics, March 2019

Litigation Combats Hazards of Aqueous Film-
Forming Foam Products
American Water Works Association (AWWA)
Opflow Magazine, August 2019

PFAS: A New Frontier for Waste Management
and Landfill Leachate
New York State Association for Solid Waste
Management (NYSASWM). Summer 2019

Recent Publications

Obtained in connection with the MTBE contamination 

of Municipal Water Supplies in Rhode Island.

$7 Million Settlement

Achieved for a Floridian town whose groundwater was 

contaminated from a chemical manufacturing plant and 

industrial properties.

$3.6 Million Settlement

For a water district serving over 48,000 residents 

in an action against several industrial entities for 

contamination.

$11 Million Settlement

Achieved in connection with the MTBE contamination of

Municipal Water Supplies in Long Island, New York.

$60 Million Settlement

This putative class action was obtained on behalf of individuals 

in the Town of Peshtigo, WI against chemical manufacturers 

for PFAS (AFFF) water contamination. 

$17.5 Million Settlement 

Settlements

Paul  J. Napoli, Partner

“Our firm has a continuing drive
to provide the highest level of
service to maximize our clients’
potential recovery.”

OUR RESULTS

Contact Us For a Free Claims Analysis



360 LEXINGTON AVENUE, 11TH FLOOR, NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10017 NAPOLILAW.COM

The firm has filed a class action lawsuit, on behalf 
of firefighters exposed to PFAS in firefighting foam 
from training and response activities,  to recover 
damages and  to possibly establish a medical 
monitoring program.

Firefighter Lawsuit The Court granted final approval for the partial 
settlement with a number of defendants in the 
Flint Water Litigation. 

$626.5 Million Flint Settlement  

Hunter J. Shkolnik is a member of the 
Plaintiffs’ Executive Committee In re: 
National Prescription Opiate Litigation, 
MDL 2804

Representing Lake and Trumbull counties (OH) in 
this federal bellwether trial, the firm led the trial 
team that secured a verdict against the national 
pharmacy chain defendants. 

National Opioid Trial 

Endo Pharmaceutical was accused of the role it 
played in the opioid epidemic and reached this 
settlement to exit the New York Opioid Jury Trial.

$50 Million Opioid Settlement 

Paul J. Napoli is Co-Lead 
Counsel in the New York Opioid
Cost Recovery Litigation 

This settlement was reached with the three largest 
drug distributors in the New York Opioid Jury Trial, 
where the firm represents Nassau County. 

$1.1 Billion Opioid Settlement

Recent Litigation

Marie Napoli, Partner

“People, families, and communities 
are affected by contaminated water. 
Our firm works towards justice and 
rebuilding lives and neighborhoods.”



REVISED EPA HEALTH ADVISORY 

“The updated advisory levels, which are 
based on new science and consider 
lifetime exposure, indicate that some 
negative health effects may occur with 
concentrations of PFOA or PFOS in water 
that are near zero and below EPA’s ability 
to detect at this time.” – EPA News 
ReleaseRelease 

This new Health Advisory dramatically 
lowers the advisory level from a 
combined 70 parts per trillion to 4 parts 
per quadrillion (.004 parts per trillion) 
for PFOA and 20 parts per quadrillion 
(.02 ppt) for PFOS. It also establishes a 
10 ppt level for GenX compounds.   10 ppt level for GenX compounds.   

Puerto Rico



NOTES

360 LEXINGTON AVENUE, 11TH FLOOR, NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10017 NAPOLILAW.COM



Copyright © 2022 Napoli Shkolnik Attorneys At Law. All rights reserved.
Attorney advertising. Prior results do not guarantee similar outcomes.

We accomplish this by fostering a 
confident client focused work 
environment with motivated employees 
where cooperation thrives and 
innovation is rewarded. 

We strive to achieve the best possible 
outcome for our clients and provide an 
unparalleled level of service. 

Our mission is to help our clients, 
whether they be families, governments, 
or companies, cope with their losses 
and their legal needs.

Mission Statement

CONTACT US

Polluters need to be 
held  accountable for 
the contamination 
their products caused 
as well as the necessary 
treatment & remediation; 
tax payers & rate payers tax payers & rate payers 
should not bear these costs.

Contact Us For a Free Claims AnalysisNAPOLILAW.COM



      

 
Subject: Wisconsin PFAS Cost Recovery Program 
  
Wisconsin Rural Water Association has teamed with National Rural Water Association to make you 
aware of a PFAS Cost Recovery Program that we strongly encourage your utility to register into, at 
no cost, to protect your utility and rate payers from a PFAS contamination financial burden. 
  

As background, when the 2016 health advisory was issued by U.S. EPA, the National Rural Water 
Association Board of Directors, which is comprised of a National Director from all 50 state 
affiliates including WRWA, voted to engage the Napoli Shkolnik law firm to file a cost recovery 
action that would allow all utilities to register and recover any current and projected future expenses 
for testing, treatment and remediation due to PFAS contamination upon any potential settlement or 
judgement in your favor. For clarification, this is not a class action lawsuit as there are multiple 
classes of plaintiffs, thus they are combined into what is called multidistrict litigation. The three 
points we want to stress to utilities are: 

1. The action is cost recovery, not punitive. 
2. The litigation is filed against the global manufacturers of the compounds and does not 

impact local companies who may have used them. 
3. There is zero upfront cost to register the utility onto the cost rolls, however, a system must 

be registered prior to any settlement or judgement being reached in order to benefit. While 
there is no timeframe as to when a settlement may be finalized, those settlement talks are 
underway. The recently announced revised health advisory from EPA will further place 
pressure on a potential settlement being reached.   
  

There is no threshold or cost to register onto the cost recovery rolls, we encourage all systems to 
register and protect their system and ratepayers from a potential increased financial burden. Systems 
should register regardless of testing or detection status. Registering onto the cost recovery rolls is 
like an insurance policy without a premium and if asked by your customers, a strong positive 
message that the system has undertaken action to lessen any financial burden resulting from PFAS 
contamination.  
 

Time is of the essence; the EPA recently set health advisory levels for PFAS as low as 4 parts per 
quadrillion. The EPA is in the process of establishing an enforceable maximum contaminant level 
(MCL) under the Safe Drinking Water Act, which essentially means that a system with any level of 
detection is likely to be out of compliance with the federal standard. Finally, EPA is planning to 
designate PFOS and PFOA as hazardous substances under the Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA). All these factors raise the potential for a 
large financial impact if these forever compounds are detected at your utility.  
  

The Wisconsin Rural Water Association encourages you to take the first step and register your 
utility at www.napolilaw.com/nrwa-pfas.    
  
Sincerely, 
Chris Groh, Executive Director    Hank Naughton, Partner 

http://www.napolilaw.com/nrwa-pfas




RETAINER AGREEMENT

THIS CONTRACT IS SUBJECT TO ARBITRATION
UNDER THE FEDERAL ARBITRATION ACT AND
THE STATE OF WISCONSIN GENERAL ARBITRATION STATUTE

Town of Brookfield Sanitary District #4, Wisconsin (Client), retains the Law Firm of
Napoli Shkolnik PLLC, as our attorneys to prosecute any legal claim for negligence (or
other viable causes of action) against any and all parties individuals and/or
corporations that are found to be liable under the law for injuries and/or property
damages suffered by us and/or our members arising out of the contamination of water
supplies by per- and polyfluoroalkyl and related substances (PFAS/PFOA), 1.4 Dioxane
and other emerging hazardous contaminants. We specifically agree as follows:

1.  FEE PERCENTAGE: Client and Law Firm agree that the Law Firm shall be paid
Twenty-Five Percent (25%) of the sum recovered, whether by suit, settlement or
otherwise. Client will not be liable to pay the Law Firm any legal fee if there is not any form of
recovery.

2. DISBURSEMENTS: In the event there is no recovery, the Client shall not be
obligated to pay the Law Firm a legal fee for services rendered.  Disbursements may
include some of the following expenses: court filing fees, sheriff fees, medical and
hospital report/record fees, doctor’s report, court stenographer fees, deposition costs,
expert fees for expert depositions and court appearances, trial exhibits, computer on-
line search fees, express mail, postage, photocopy charges, document management
charges, long distance telephone charges among other charges.  Document management
charges are the fees charged by the law firm for processing documents during litigation,
such as medical records, documents produced by defendant(s) and/or other parties, etc.
Processing of the documents may include but is not limited to the following: (1)
scanning; (2) conversion of native files to PDF documents; (3) OCR (optical code
recognition); and/or (4) indexing.  At the time of settlement and distribution of
proceeds, these expenses shall be deducted from the Client’s share after computation of
the Attorney’s Fee.

3.  COMPUTATION OF FEES. The contingency fee shall be computed on the
gross recovery, resulting in a net settlement (or judgment), from which all appropriate



disbursements in connection with the institution and prosecution of this claim is
deducted, as set forth in paragraph 2 above.  Examples of how a contingency fee is
computed are as follows:

Gross settlement $100.00
25% Attorney’s Fee              $ 25.00
Net settlement $ 75.00
Disbursements             -$ 10.00
Net to Client $ 65.00

4.  WITHDRAWAL: The Law Firm expressly reserves the right to withdraw its
representation at any time upon reasonable notification to the client.  In the event that
the client advises the Law Firm to discontinue the handling of this claim, or if the client
fails to cooperate with the Law Firm in the handling of this claim, client agrees to
compensate the Law Firm a reasonable amount for its services, and for the time spent
on this claim on an hourly basis or under such other arrangement that may be agreed
upon by the parties.  The client understands that the Law Firm have conditionally
accepted this case based upon independent confirmation of all facts and injuries
claimed to have been sustained by Client.  In the event that the client desires to transfer
the file from this office, the client shall be responsible to compensate the Law Firm for
the reasonable value of their services.  Such transfer shall not include documents or
attorney work product regarding the general liability of the defendants.

5.  APPEALS:   The above contingency fee does not contemplate any appeal.  The
Law Firm are under no duty to perfect or prosecute such appeal until a satisfactory fee
arrangement is made in writing regarding costs and counsel fees.

6.  STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS: We understand that any lawsuit must be
commenced within a certain limited time period, (that may vary, depending upon the
defendant) starting from the "discovery of the injury" or of "the date when through the
exercise of reasonable diligence such injury should have been discovered… whichever
is earlier". We further understand that the Statute of Limitations period for any case
must be investigated and that this Agreement is made subject to that investigation as
well as an investigation of the entire case.

7. FINANCING OF CASE: If the firm borrows money from any lending
institution to finance the cost of the client’s case, the amounts advanced by this firm to
pay the cost of prosecuting or defending a claim or action or otherwise protecting or
promoting the client’s interest will bear interest at the highest lawful rate allowed by
applicable law.  In no event will the interest be greater than the amount paid by the firm
to the lending institution.



8.  RESULTS NOT GUARANTEED: No attorney can accurately predict the
outcome of any legal matter, accordingly, no representations are made, either expressly
or impliedly, as to the final outcome of this matter.  We further understand that we must
immediately report any changes in address and telephone number to the Law Firm.

9. APPROVAL NECESSARY FOR SETTLEMENT: Attorneys are hereby
granted a power of attorney so that they may have full authority to prepare, sign and
file all legal instruments, pleadings, drafts, authorizations, and papers as shall be
reasonably necessary to conclude this representation, including settlement and/or
reducing to possession any and all monies or other things of value due to the Client
under the claim as fully as the Client could do so in person. Attorneys are also
authorized and empowered to act as Client’s negotiator in any and all negotiations
concerning the subject of this Agreement.

10. ASSOCIATION OF OTHER ATTORNEYS: The Law Firm may, at its own
expense, use or associate other attorneys in the representation of the aforesaid claims of
the Client.  Client understands that Law Firm employs numerous attorneys that may
work on Client’s case.

11. ASSOCIATE COUNSEL: The Law Firm may participate in the division of
fees in this case and assume joint responsibility for the representation of the client either
in the event that the Attorney retains associate counsel or that the client later chooses
new counsel, provided that the total fee to the client does not increase as a result of the
division of fees and that the attorneys involved have agreed to the division of fees and
assumption of joint responsibility. The Client will be advised of such joint responsibility
and full disclosure will be made to Client regarding the division of fees so that the
consent of the Client can be obtained.

12. WISCONSIN OR APPLICABLE LAW TO APPLY: This Agreement shall be
considered construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State of Wisconsin
or applicable law and the rights, duties and obligations of Client and of Attorneys
regarding Attorney’s representation of Client and regarding anything covered by this
Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsin or applicable law.

13. ARBITRATION: Any and all disputes, controversies, claims or demands
arising out of or relating to (1) this Agreement or (2) any provision hereof or (3) the
providing of services by the Law Firm to Client or (4) the relationship between the Law
Firm and Client, whether in contract, tort or otherwise, at law or in equity, for damages
or any other relief, shall be resolved by binding arbitration pursuant to the Federal
Arbitration Act in accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules then in effect with
the American Arbitration Association.  Any such arbitration proceeding shall be
conducted in Wisconsin.  This arbitration provision shall be enforceable in either federal
or state court in Wisconsin pursuant to the substantive federal laws established by the



Federal Arbitration Act.  Any party to any award rendered in such arbitration
proceeding may seek a judgment upon the award and that judgment may be entered by
any Court in Wisconsin having jurisdiction.

14. PARTIES BOUND: This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal
representative, successors and assigns. Client or the Law Firm can execute this
document electronically, by indicating “I agree” (or similar language) via electronic
mail after receiving the Agreement via electronic mail. By indicating “I agree” (or
similar language) Client will be bound by the terms of the Agreement and is executing
the document electronically via Client’s electronic signature, indicated as “/s/” in the
signature field and elects the Law Firm advance disbursements.

15. LEGAL CONSTRUCTION: In case any one or more of the provisions
contained in this Agreement shall for any reason be held invalid, illegal or
unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not
affect any other provisions thereof and this Agreement shall be construed as if such
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.

16. PRIOR AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED: This Agreement constitutes the sole
and only Agreement of the parties hereto and supersedes any prior understandings or
written or oral agreement between the parties respecting the within subject matter.

We certify and acknowledge that we have had the opportunity to read this
Agreement and have answered any questions pertaining thereto. We further state that
we have voluntarily entered into this Agreement fully aware of the terms and
conditions.

SIGNED AND ACCEPTED ON THIS ______day of___________________,
20_____

THIS CONTRACT IS SUBJECT TO ARBITRATION
UNDER THE FEDERAL ARBITRATION ACT AND

THE WISCONSIN GENERAL ARBITRATION STATUTE

(Name of Client)

By: ________

______________________________________
Printed Name
Email Address:

NAPOLI SHKOLNIK,
PLLC

______________________
__________



Title:______________________________

Address: ___________________________

_______________________________________

______________________
___________
Printed Name of
Attorney

Phone: CONTACT INFORMATION
Client:
___________________________________________________
____________________
Main contact person:
___________________________________________________
_________
Phone number:
___________________________________________________
______________
Email address:
___________________________________________________
______________
Address:
___________________________________________________
___________________

Legal counsel:
___________________________________________________
______________
Phone number:
___________________________________________________
______________
Email address:
___________________________________________________
______________
Address:
___________________________________________________
___________________

Public Works Superintendent:
___________________________________________________
Phone number:
___________________________________________________
______________
Email address:
___________________________________________________
______________



Address:
___________________________________________________
___________________

Environmental Engineering Firm (if applicable):
_____________________________________
Phone number:
___________________________________________________
______________
Email address:
___________________________________________________
______________
Address:
___________________________________________________
___________________

GENERAL INFORMATION
1. Have you tested for PFAS and received positive results?

Circle One: YES NO

IF YES, please attach any Reports that include results and
data for all tests that you have conducted related to the
presence of PFAS contamination.

2. Has there been any known usage of AFFF or Class B
firefighting foam in the area (fire extinguishing, fire
department training, etc.)?

Circle One: YES NO
If YES, who used them and (if known) what type(s) of AFFF
were used?

3. Are there or have there ever been any airports nearby?

Circle One: YES NO
If YES, what are/were they?



4. Are there any military bases or military training facilities
nearby?

Circle One: YES NO
If YES, has there been any AFFF usage there?
Circle One: YES NO
Are there any PFAS testing results available of groundwater,
surface water or soil (circle all that apply)?

5. Do you know of any facility that may be storing AFFF, such
as airports, fire departments or fire training facilities?

Circle One: YES NO
If YES, what are they?

6. Do you know of any local landfills or recycling centers?

Circle One: YES NO
If YES, please list them:
________________________________________________
_________________________
________________________________________________
_________________________
________________________________________________
_________________________

7. Are you aware of any other potential source of PFAS
contamination?

Circle One: YES NO

If YES, please provide a list:

________________________________________________
_________________________
________________________________________________
_________________________
________________________________________________
_________________________

8. Have you received/issued any Drinking Water Advisories
related to PFAS?

Circle One: YES NO



9. Have you received/issued any Fish Consumption Advisories
related to PFAS?

Circle One: YES NO
10. Have you obtained any recovery or reimbursement of funds

for investigation, testing, or remediation from any other
entities (public or private) in connection with the alleged
presence of PFAS in that water system?

Circle One: YES NO

If YES, please provide details:

IF YOU OPERATE A WASTE STORAGE FACILITY,
LANDFILL, OR RECYCLING CENTER, PLEASE
ANSWER THE FOLLOWING:
1. Do you treat effluent/leachate internally or is it sent to a

wastewater treatment plant?

Which Wastewater Treatment
Plant:_____________________________________________
* If you treat the effluent/leachate internally, please refer to the
Wastewater Treatment questions.
2. Have you ever had failures of the landfill liner that led to

leachate seeping or seepage of leachate outside the bounds of
this liner?

Circle One: YES NO
IF YOU OPERATE A DRINKING OR WASTEWATER
TREATMENT PLANT, PLEASE ANSWER THE
FOLLOWING:
1. Is the water treatment facility equipped with a method for

treating water that is capable of removing PFAS
contamination?

Circle One: YES NO
If YES, please specify:



2. Do you use biological treatment processes at your facility?

Circle One: YES NO
3. Do you dispose of treated biosolids (circle all that apply):

Sell for agricultural purposes
Send to a landfill
Other:
_____________________________________________
_____________________

4. Do you test effluent biosolids for PFAS?

Circle One: YES NO
Thank you for taking the time fill out this

information sheet!





 

 

 

TOWN OF BROOKFIELD 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATIONS 

SEPTEMBER 13, 2022 

 

Town Chairman Keith Henderson called the special meeting to order at 7:30pm on Tuesday, September 

13, 2022, at the Town of Brookfield Town Hall, 645 North Janacek Road, Brookfield, Wisconsin. Also 

present at the meeting was Supervisor Mike Schmitt; Commissioners William Neville, Len Smeltzer, 

Jeremy Watson, Kevin Riordan; Town Planner Bryce Hembrook; and applicants. Commissioner Gordon 

Gaeth was absent.  

  

RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE THE PLAN OF OPERATION FOR 20825 SWENSON 

DRIVE SUITE 150 TO ALLOW AN INDOOR SMALL ENGINE TESTING FACILITY LOCATED 

WITHIN AN OFFICE BUILDING. 

Commissioner Watson moved to approve the plan of operation for 20825 Swenson Drive Suite 150 as 

presented to allow an indoor small engine testing facility located within the office building.  

 

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Neville and carried unanimously. 

 

 

.  
 

 



Engineers | Architects | Planners | Scientists

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc., 501 Maple Avenue, Delafield, WI 53018-9351
SEH is 100% employee-owned | sehinc.com | 262.646.6855 | 888.908.8166 fax

TOWN OF BROOKFIELD PLAN COMMISSION ZONING REPORT

TO: Plan Commission

FROM: Bryce Hembrook, Town Planner

REPORT DATE: September 9, 2022
PC MEETING DATE: September 13, 2022

RE: JD North America – Plan of Operation
20825 Swenson Dr BKFT1129999003

SEH No. 166220, TASK 30

Applicant: John Davis/Paul McBride
Application Type: Plan of Operation

Request
Review and approve Plan of Operation for JD North America to allow a small engine testing lab within an office
building in the B-2 district.

Summary of Request
 Zoning District = B-2 Limited General Business District
 Proposed use = Office with indoor small engine testing lab

o Office space = 7,651 square feet.
o Lab = 3,296 square feet

The applicant provided a floor plan which is included in the packet. The applicant is currently interested in
leasing a portion of the building. The zoning code does not specifically discuss this type of testing facility within
the B-2 district, but allows office uses in the B-2 district. The Plan Commission should determine if this proposed
use is appropriate in the B-2 zoning district.

According to the Plan of Operation narrative provided by the applicant, “the test lab will be used to validate the
performance and durability of portable generators and pressure washers. The products are powered by internal
combustion engines less than 500cc in displacement and are fueled by gasoline and/or lp. The testing consists of
running the product with the engines to determine that they meet the performance criteria required of them.
The portable generators will be using separate load banks to simulate power demands by the consumer for the
application.  The pressure washers will use water (via internal circulation system and supplied by building water
input). Both types of product will have their own dedicated test rooms inside the building. They will be designed
to manage water drainage, exhaust, ventilation, temperature and other code requirements for those
applications. The lab will be designed for a capacity of 6 pressure washers and 6 portable generators with the



JD North America – Plan of Operation Page 2

ability to run 24/7.” There will be several representatives attending the meeting to discuss the proposed use in
further detail and answer questions.

Staff Recommendation
Per the discretion of the Plan Commission





Bob Pjevach, 7025 Kettering Ln, Suwanee, GA 30024



Feet0
Notes:

198.99

Waukesha County GIS Map

9/13/2022

The information and depictions herein are for informational purposes and Waukesha County specifically disclaims accuracy in this reproduction and 
specifically admonishes and advises that if specific and precise accuracy is required, the same should be determined by procurement of certified 
maps, surveys, plats, Flood Insurance Studies, or other official means. Waukesha County will not be responsible for any damages which result from 
third party use of the information and depictions herein, or for use which ignores this warning. Printed:

Legend

Municipal Boundary_2K

Parcel_Dimension_2K

Note_Text_2K

Lots_2K

Lot

Unit

General Common Element

Outlot

SimultaneousConveyance_2K

Assessor Plat

CSM

Condominium

Subdivision

Cartoline_2K

EA-Easement_Line

PL-DA

PL-Extended_Tie_line

PL-Meander_Line

PL-Note

PL-Tie

PL-Tie_Line

<all other values>

Railroad_2K



SUITE 200

SUITE 150

+/- 3,296 SF

LAB

+/- 7,651 SF
OFFICE

SEPT. 7, 2022

SUITE 150 SWENSON DR

glpeterb
Text Box
Total Building SF =  +/- 39, 600GSF



glandrewr
Rectangle

glandrewr
Callout
RTU(S)

glandrewr
Rectangle

glandrewr
Callout
LOAD CELL, FUEL STORAGE SCREEN WALL

glpeterb
Rectangle

glpeterb
Callout
ROOF SCREEN+/- 8' TALL

glpeterb
Text Box
Estimated locations / sizes of roof and site.  Further development required


	Wray Park Draft
	DRAFT 2023 General Budget
	Temp Class B Chamber
	PC 9-13-22 Recommendations to TB
	JD North America - Town Board Materials
	Sheets
	01.3 - SUITE 150 SWENSON DR


	DRAFT Minutes TB 09-6-2022
	PFAS Overview 7122
	Water Media Kit 01
	Water Media Kit 02
	Water Media Kit 03
	Water Media Kit 05
	Water Media Kit 06B
	Water Media Kit 07A
	Water Media Kit 08
	Water Media Kit 09
	Water Media Kit 11
	Water Media Kit 12

	Wisconsin Letter to NRWA Members_PFAS Campaign
	Wisconsin PFAS NRWA Handout
	Town of Brookfield Sanitary District ^N4 Wisconsin Draft Retainer (002)
	THIS CONTRACT IS SUBJECT TO ARBITRATION
	UNDER THE FEDERAL ARBITRATION ACT AND
	THIS CONTRACT IS SUBJECT TO ARBITRATION
	NAPOLI SHKOLNIK, PLLC




	PLM - Wray Park Proposal

